ANTIQUITIRS: The early history of Cong Abbey Is enshrouded
in & haze of conjJecture & contradictlon on the parts of
hilstorians & antiquarians. It sppeasrs clearly enough,
however, that 1t was bullt & rebullt on or near the alte
of & primitlve establlshment founded hy Zt, Fechin in the
Tirst gquerter of the Tth cnety. A leter bl3dg was destroyed
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ANTIQUITIES (contd:)

by fire in 1114 A.D. &, during the next dedade or so, it
was rebullt for the Canons Regular of the Order of st
Auguatine.
The bldg was destroyed by Munster raiders in 1137
& King Turloch Mor O'Connor decided to build once more om .
8 sSca “]ﬂf great magnificence. (Ref. Dr. Healy, ‘Irish
Essa -
; Igﬁhnnla of piutg, art & leerning were developed &
the names of many holy & tolented members of the community
aere recorded in the annals of the monastery. It was
involved 1in the waras Z intrigues of the kings,” chleftains
& invaders too, & suffered much at the hends of predatory
ralders. Members of the 0'Duffy family, a great
eccleslastical famlly, wers atteched to the monastery, as
monks, prlesta, abbots, hiahﬂpa & archbishopa, & patrona
from an aarly perlﬁd, & are Iinvarisbly referred to in
accounts of the abbey.
. High-Eing Roderick O!'Conor was long a patron of Cong
& spent his last yrs of sad retirement here, whers he
died In 1198. Some local guiﬂa will point £o a grave in
the Abbey ss that of Roderick 0'Conor, but, though he may -
have been interred there for a time, hia Hnﬁ? found a2 -
Tinal resting place at Clonmecnols. Caethal Crowdesrg
. 0'Conaqr, Cathsl of the Red-line Hand, 1llegitimete son of
Turloch or Roderick (it 1s not certaln which, though
Turloch is recognised as having been his father) succesdad
to the throme in 1205 & he also rebullt the abbey a short
time lster - the present ruin being thet of his reconatruction,
with the modification, perhaps, of wverlous. restorations.
Surviving the wars & glelssltudes of a further 500 ¥rs,
the Atbey of the Regulhr Augustiniens was dedicated to Our
Lady of the ﬁuﬁary at the 13th centy reconsfruction, was
suppressed In 1542 &, Jhnugb cormunitiss of holy brethren
are. found tn'havﬂ been in cccupation at different times
efterwards, 1t was never raatnreﬂ to anything approaching
1ts fﬂrmar megnificence. If is seid that 1,000 monks
left ‘with thﬁ‘Lurd Abbot, on Lits supprﬂssiuv
The last reconstruction i3 in & style that exemplifies
the 13th centy. transition from the lovely Hlberno-
Rlomanesque to the Eerly Engllsh Gothic, & the rulns, as
they stand to-day, afford cxamples of very beautlful
daalgn & worlkmanshilp. Thes remalning walls sre not
indieative of very grest extent or ﬁimanaiﬂrs, nor do they
occupy an exceedingly Imposing slte,.though indeed, thelr
locatlon #mid tall sheltering trees, on the hank nf a
1impid sireem, is both charming & adventageous. & has
sent many mriters inte raptures.
Commencing in 1860, Sit Denjamin Lee Gulnnessz perform-
ed & very sﬂmirahla work 1n rastering parcs of the
alois tﬂrs, doors, windows & walls, &, thanks to the loving
care & interest bestowsd on thelr work by the expert
family of stoneworkers; the Foys, the novice will heve
difficulty quite often in discerning the original 13th
centy. carvings amidst thoze of the 1%th centy. '
The ’*ant clolzster gerth was neardy 100! sg. In
, 8ize & was enclosed by a 10! wide embulatory, flenked
- * by en greade of 160 anches, Pillars {: cerved cepltels
of & couple cf the ﬂTlL¢“FT ¢loister arches remslrn, In the
K.Z. corner, neer the de ir-iﬁ'“ar tomb, & these display
a rich ornerentation thaot haz been very fuith*ullg
reproduced in others that have Deen 'ersected during the
laat *Lntj
The flne =, window of -the church consists of three
wery tell 1i-hts with Inwaed *31"“' =, & 180, haz bean
ﬂﬂﬂrﬁnl" IJLtE‘Ed, new heads having Becn cut & set In
olace In 1 ”T : :
ThHe restored besutliful Yomenesgue 7. doorwey 1z of
four or d_rs with “u*iu colurms, its cepitels enriched
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‘with carved foliage. The walls of the nave are now N

considerably reduced at the W.' end, but the E. gable
is preserved at Its original helight of 80'., = .
In all, the art & #kill of at least.four different
perlods. ls 'digplayed, 1.e., the nri%inal work of cirgs
1206, the. origlinal  work rebullt, 15th centy work & ; Vi
thet of the laat centy restoration. . .
Chief other features of interest &rs the Norman :
door with bead moulding, now blocked though-visible from

-the Inside,. & three other doors, also on the W. front,

®

one pleln round-hedded & the others wvary eleborate
Trensitlional, conbining Normman & Barly-English features, .
In this wall too there are two exquisite round-arshed s
winddwa, formerly of two lights, though now blocked-up’.
: Throughout its history, Cong Abbey was ‘a favourite
with the kings & chleftains of the W., & the graves of
many 1llustrious men & women are represanted in the
tombstones with which the church is paved. That -1} weas
for many centurles a place of great égocleslasticel
lmportance 13 frequeptly & subatantlially proved, & at
the beginning of the 12th centy (1118), at the Symod
of Rath-Breassll, Cong wasa counted as one of the 5 dioceses
in the province of Connaght, though, at ths later Synod
of Xells, in 1152, it was not recognised as such.
Nevertheless, the abtbotz of Cong for long sppear to have
exerclsed eplscopallan “jurisdiction over large areas of
the western country.

For at least four centurles, from. 1097 toc 1501, the
0tDuffy's ministered & laboured at or patronised Cong

i b K
5,
.

Abbveyt, & a great meny of them, including Muireadach &
.Cathal, the two greeteat of the family died & were buried -,

thara, .

¥ulreadach O'Dulfy, called-Archbishop of Connacht,
close friend & supporter of Ting Turloch 0!'Conor, died =
In 1150, THe wes also superlor of Cong & waa described es
the "Senlor of Erim in wisdom, chastity & bestowal of
jowels & gifts, & the "Hand of Helizlon",
Cathal wes friend & counsellor to King Roderick
G'Comnor & sccompenied S5t. Laurence O'Toole & the Abbot of
Clonfart on the misslon to Henry of England at London
to plead on behelf of thelr king. He was 40 yrs
Archblshop of Tumm & was present at the death of his
Yeloved monarch at Cong in 1193, returning himself later
to spend his last days ot the abbey, whers he was buried.

Flanagen O'Duffy, also a Superior of Cong & Zishop
of Elphin, was "Chlef Doctor.of the Irish in llterature,
poetry, hlstory & every Wind of sclencd lmown to man in
hiz time." He diled In luredach's spartment & was burled
at Cong in 11&8. "

legurlece "the Canon", a member of the communlty &
son of King Moderick 0'Conor, dled & wes burled st Cong
L.D,. 1224, :

shiertly afteryards, hils sister - Huals, Tueen of
Jlater - dled & was buried et the alley. Another sister,
Finola, liYewise was burled there in 1247.

Thers 1s emple evldence too thet Cong was .a cenkre
of achooling in the fine arts - musie, poetry, 1lluminetory
work & literature belng taought there. The tschnlecal =ids
nlso was attended to & puplls were taught the practlical
erus. L erafts, Ineluding the malking of muslical IAstruments, ’

~-mewal & wood works.

r 1-1

ine possaaalons of Cong Abbey wera numerouns & rich,

iz thg Lords Abbot tocl: tolls from properties aa far

removed as Cork & Earelhwgven & the lovw. They cleimed a o
tithe ol the fisk caught In, the Noy; no ong could coas

the narts of Zork clty without s lizence from fhem &

from Jormac Maclarthy, ¥ing of lunster; they were entitled
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to a bell-rope from every ship entaring Dunboy & Cork
‘Harbours ¢ as from the ships entering thes lNoy. "

' A cloged erypt or-veult in the 'S. wall contalns a
heap of skulls which were uhearthed during cleanings &
restoration. Wilde stetes that a number of tombs ere
decorated wilth chalices, crozlers & Crosses, but these
gre not easily dlscernible now. :

, Dur.'..nf Eliza‘bﬂth‘a relgn the abbey & lm;da s .
partlcularly the abbeylands of Commemara &:Jﬁyca.ﬂuuntry,
were granted to the Provest & Fellows of T.C.D, - ;

Adlolining the 'sanctuary of the sbbey Ghurch is seen

- ‘a large ugly enclosed vault of the de Bdrminghem family -
one of the first to profit by the gonflscation. Hereln
is a tombstone marking the grave of James B&rmingham 5

*who died in 1705. . :

Thé last Lord Abbot of Cong, Fr. Patrick Prendergast,
was parish prieat of Cong 'from f?QE to- 1829, . Abbot
Prendergast preserved the Tamous Cross of Cong, which he
placad on the alter at Cong every Christmas & Zaster,

& the abbey chronicles or collection of likerature
called the Book of the Shred, which an ignorant tallor -
gut up for patterns. Te also held the Shrine & the
Full-s-Ree or King's BElood, sald to be a relic of the
unhappy Charles I ﬂf England.

The Cross of .Cong, or Bacall Ewee, may be mﬂntiﬂnad
with The sbtey, since it was preserved there for a long
856 . It was purchased by Zrof. Mefullough in 1839
{for the R.I.A.) Pfrom the laat Abbot's muccessor. 1t is
now preserved at the National Museum In Dublln. An
oaken cross, 30" x 19", it 1s covered with bronze &'
sillver plntas % exquititely ornamented with intricate

"engravings similar to those of the Book of Kells, & with
niello, blue-andrwhite enamel, & delicate fillgres work
in gold. The centrel gem or crystal & the sacraﬂ relic
waich 1t covered have both disappeared & some of the sllver
plates show signs of the ecross heving besn subjected to
harsh trcat;ﬂnt, perneps In hiding. A ssrles of .
Inscriptions in Irish & opne In.latin are punched Into
the allver platea around the sides & precious stones
ware 2et 1h the corners. The Latin lnscription,
translated, reads:< "In this Oross 1s preserved tha
Srogs on which suffored the Foundsr of the world."

The Irlsh Inscriptlons a prayers for Turloch O!'Conor,

'Iiing of Ireland, who had the shrine made; for Muz agh
Jor R'TTFthd1 'Duffy, the "Senior of Irelanﬂ“ for
the nbhﬂ* of ulDﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂ*a & Roacommon, under hnze
supervizion it wes mpde, & for the mﬂkﬂr, lleellisa lao
:rathan 0'Zghan.

Vulrgpdach O0'Duffy was the archbishop of Comnacht,
Turliocht!s friend, &, =ince hls meny yrs as Archblshop
wera mostly apent ‘at Tuam, thers 13 little doubt bButb
uJﬂt the original Intention was that the shrine should
be kand there.d: that 1t really should be the "Cross of
Tuam". But he retlred to spaﬁd hia lmst yrs et Cong
brought the Cross with him, "¢ he dled there In 1130.

Tnet 1t wes made either at Hoscommon or at Clooncraelfl,

glso 1n taaet county, there can be no doubt & thus, whet

13 scknowledged to be the Iinest plece of metel, jewellery-
& enamel work to be made in lts era In Europe, 1s establlish-
ed ps al genuinely Irish conceptlon & executlon.

The ?Edgall Auidha, or Yellow Crozler,. is*so cailedd
owing to 1its colour & the reliec of the True Cross,
vhich wes contalned In this shriwe or rare I paerless
beauty, was sent from Rome fo King Lrla?h, & enshrined,
in 11Z5. - .

Iy, Teldron” {later Deaon of Tusm), succassor to Abbot
7r’r13ﬂ;53t e3 Parish Priest of Zong, scld the cross Lo
Prof. Felullagh for 100 gns. which he sorely naaded o
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~repalrs to his church, & he had the ‘mssurence of safe ;
preservation by the R.I.A. But hls suacesaor, Pr.
Levelle, a flery agltator on behelf of his people,
sought to regain’.the Cross J:;, one ‘day, he went to the
Hatlonal Museum, broke the glass csse & retrieved the
sarine. ~ He was surrounded by a crowd in the atreet, -
howaver, & was [orced eventually to yleld the Cross. to
the luseum authoritiss once nmore. 2

The Fiachal-Fhadral Eﬂhrinn of St. Patrick's Tooth),

-~ & the Cathach o cnnells, two other snglent \
rell 1és associnted with the abbey, now répose also in

the. Hational Musgum. J :
" The Fiachal Thedralg contalned one of the saint's®
. teath, which he had glven to St, Broulus, & is mede of
wood, seml-clrpcular in shape, with brasas & silver plating,
ornamented with crystals & smber, gold & silver filifree
work. ° A metal cross, with figures at the sldes, adorns
the upper portion of the front of the shrine, & under
thlis are the figures of 33. Patrick, Brigid, Erendan,
Columba & Benignus; the reverse side has engraved
designs & & cross} beslde which are two figures in rellef. °
- The Eafhach, or Caagh, of the 0'Donnells, one of the
most veluable & storied of Irdish reliquarlss, is an
helirloom that was® jealously guarded by the 0'Donnell
family through mamy centuflea. This shrine, in the fobm
of a box, 2" x 8Y, having a heavily-gilt silver 1id
Tivetted to a bress plate, wilth sapphlres & orystels set
in the corners & grotesque Tigures adorning the rim, 1s
richly inlaid with gold on the inside which is dixided .
into three compertments by amsll clustersd tolumms. -
ne compartment shows St. Celumba holding e book, the
sacond shows The Virgin & Mary Magdalen beside the cross,
& the third a richly-robed eécclesliastis, The shrine
montained S5t. Columba's copy of the Letin Vulgete
version on vellum in 58 membraness - The C'Dennells
carrled thils Cathach +'Battle Book - into battle with
them, belleving that it pasured them victory & the
saintly scribe himsgelf 414 pensnce in Iong for the
pazsionate impulse, inspired by this Psalter, which
fired him to rouse hls kinsmen,: the Royal 0'Donnells, to
battle in 561, The,Cathach was deposited in:a Belglan
monastery by Danlel O0'Donnell, in 1723, & was brouht
back to Ireland by Sir'¥eal 0'Donnell in 1B15.
Helther the Cathach nor the Fiachal Flwmdralg 1s
really linked, fundementally, by any strong tles wlth
» Cong, but that they were both preserved there for long
rzes, The "Cathech"” wgs held by the 0'Domnells of
Hewport, owners of Cong Abbey & the lsthrms between the
lgkes, in the later ages & both were in the possesslon
of the last Lord Abbobt, who kept them, =2t hls reslidence
at Atbotstown, with the Croas of Jong.

Thae Full-'e-Rilosh - Fing's Dleod - was elso in the possession
of hobot Prendergast, & was & pisce of linen supposaed to
have been dloped in the blood of Tharlezs I of England,
executed In 1549. 2ir Vm..%1lde says that this discolour-
ed rag was belleved So possess the Stuart faculty of curlng
the "Hing's Zvil" & thaebt hundreds came to Abbot Prendergasat
to be. touched by it. Me ¢alls 1t s screfula - curing rag;

» acrofula is "s dlsesse affecting the glandsa, especially
of the neclk.” ) '

It 13 mow sug-ested, however, by pecple who clainm to
have portlon of tha eleth, thet it 1s portlIon of the towel
with which Veronice wiped the face of Jur Lord on hls wey.
to Calvery, & that 1t was brought Ee Ireland by the Blake
famlly, one of whom had fought In the Crusadea, They
olalm thet 1t was divided into two pieces, one of which 1s
now ot the Convent of lerey, Tuam, thé other having been
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gi#ﬂn g3 a token of esteam to the ﬂul}ininn family of

Crosa, in this parish, by the Blake family, to whonm 'they . :

had bnun retainers. This portion.ls now iIn the possesslon

of Mr., Cullinane of the Erris Hotel, Castlebar, & it is

belleved thet the owner intends to aubmit 1t to sclentific
analysls - or that he has already done so.

Cong Abbey, dt the séuthern end of the wlll., edjoin-
ing the Catholiec church at Eshford Castle gate entrance,
is in the care of the 0.P.W. & may be wisited st =y
time, without charge. . The keys are held by the care-
taker, lir. Hobt. Varley, Cong.:

Dr. James Lynch, Archbishop of Tuam for 44 yrs,
dled & was buried at Cong Abbey in 1703; Hia tomb ia
at1ll pointed out :inside a Protecting ralling. He was
& contemporary ol,lllver Elunkntt then Primate, Arch-
bishop of Armagh, & suffered much persecution at the
hands of & bigoted purdtan element, being forced to flea
for dafety to “the continent more then cnee. When in
hiding, he used tho name "Dominick Deané”. . During his
atay in Madrid, In 1678, Titus Oates, of infesmous memory,
started the scare of a Papiat Epaniah Invaslon, accusling
Df. Lynch of complicity. As a result, the Cathollec
clergy of Iraland ware subjected to murder & eruelty.

Stonas: Lﬂac na bFoll - Bullagun - stone 11&3 under a
covaring of earth & dirt,at the rere of sn ocuthouse
behlpnd Mr. P. O'Dowd's raaidﬂnna in Cong. - -Sir Wm.
Wilde ssys that this stone"tzles precedence of all cther
atongs in Cong, upon which .craft of man hed been exercised
in Christien times." It would be s troublesome matter to
excavate & clean the stone, s0 the followlng description
ls from "llde's sccount: "It is a large triangulsr red
grit flag, 2' thieck & 83' leng in its greatest dlameter,
frum under which a nuvar-failinh limpid spring lassues.
Its upper surfdce 1s hollowed Into 5 basin-1ike smooth
excavations, averaging 12" wide & 4% deep, & usually known
a8 bullauna, Trom fhe ILatin 'bulla' - & bowl; & which,.
from thelr Iinverisbly belng found In immediate connectlon
wlth the most anclent ﬁhurnﬂes, may be regarded as
primitive bnptlsnul fents."”
Inalde the second dmnrway in the 2. wall of the

rgfectory - ‘hat portion ol -the Abbey ruln which faces
the stresm - & broken flat stone slab, bearing two of the
inclsed arms of a cross, will be observed, This mey
have bBeen.a terminal cross marking one of the boundaries
of the esneclent sacred encloszure, Two of the arma of the
_crass may be dliscermed, both almost the full breasdth of

the sleb, which messures approx. 16" sq. & 6" deepn. The
arms nucﬁ extend in 4 double lines thet terminate *n
double clroles. :

At the opening of this cgaﬂ'a“, an irregulerly curved.

atone slab, llke tHe brolen base of a oross, will be
notlced. ”H'" beers some chinped & indegcipherable
lettering & the date November 1721, It meesures appHrox.

T

3t in lengblh, 18" in breadth & over 6" in thickness.

sAn Interesting noté concerning Song Abbey 1s that
Johm Eing, Secmtary for Ireland, who regeived o srent of
Conz % its2 landd, was the father of the Rewvd, HEdw. Eing
of Cambridge, " best beloved Lycidas of Milton," Tha
Aevd. King was drowmed in the Irlsh Sea 1n 1637.

The "lonks' Elshing House" siands In Jong R. between the
-rent metal eel-weir & the bridge below the Abbey. It 1s
a 3mall alnzle-apartment 1t?m:u1re, with o neat polnted
window, & 1t mow roofless & breached. Underneath 1ls &
trap-passopge hroush whilch the water flows & Iln which the
fish could be kept fresh 1ﬂi11 ragquired. Local tradlitilon
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will have jou believe that when & fiﬂh.wnﬂ¢ﬁnught in the
ttap, a bell gutomatically rang in the Lbbey to ennounce
the new & welcome errival. . "The nesrby bridge is

guarded at each sida by & finalf-wr t srched geteway, .
over dne of which 1s carved the head of King Roderick 5
ﬂlﬂgnunr &, over the cother, that of the lau Lord Abbot
of Cgng .

Tne STONE MONCMENTS which are 1itteved throughout
this parish are numberiess, i comprise uf cairne, forts,

souterrains, long stcnes stc. 3 A
Sir Wm.-Wiide absorbs most or all of them in his
effort to prove that the Battle of Moyture took place
here, but, other then.hils sccount, there seems to be no
history or traﬂitiun attached to mnra thean a few, such as
Inishowen Ceher. Ferguson, in "Ruds Stone Monuments" .
says that: "the Firbolgs sdvanced from the plains of Iy *
Yegth ss far as Cong, where the Tirst battle wes fought,
(with the invaeding Tuathe De Danaan) &, after being
fiercely contested for four days, was declided in favour
.of the Ilnvaders. The second battlﬁ wes fﬂuﬂht seven yrs
afterwards, near Sligo (Horfhern Moytura) . . ." Bub
Ferguson, a5 would appear from a later passage, bases
- his knnwladgﬂ on the contentions of Wilde. .
The fodlowlng are smongst the prinaipal antigquities
of the kind wentiﬁrﬁﬂ remaining to-day:-

Killower Calrn - "Cern Eochy": Wilde believed that this
glant calrn wes the mound erected by mourning Firbelglan
warriors over the grave of their King, Eochy, %ho was
alain In the great Battle of Moytura by the three sons of -
Hemhed Xac Badhrai - the three warrlors nlso dles of :
their'wounds. . But this great calrn has not been knowm -
by eny name other then Killower lm local tredition -
Carn Eochy haes definitely been identiflied in Co. Sligo.
Fillower ls the largest carn in the W. of Ireland,
about 30' high over the elevafed ground on which it
stands, » 1little to the W.E. of deh Mask House & about
34m. from Cong. The base of the cairn was surrcunded
by en esarthen rampart of enormous. girth, Insjde vhich was
‘s formldeble clrele of large flagstones. The , rempart 1s
now mach damepged & only three of the flagstones sre still
. erect, The men-mede calrn was bullt with loose stomes &
» boulders, & 1t secms ressonably safle to assume that = R .,
tomb or, perhaps, ertificiasl apartments L

vmphslfleld Cilreles: [DFilve =tone circlez wers supposed to
ex1st ot iympEaTEﬂId, about E.. from Cunn, on the right-

hand side of the Zallinrobe rosad. Two of them are
rvisible fTDm-thﬂ.fD&iSlﬁﬂ, facing the “rotestant "rector's
Tiouse . Two more will be found In the adjeolning flelds

behind, & Lthe [ifth ls elther so dilgpidated a3s to be
unrecognisable or elsa barely tracesbls.” The two seen
from the road are enclosed by iron fallings. The first
conaists of 28 standing u;nnad,_lﬂ ol these belng large
flegs, & 1s sbout 16 paces In dleameter The. secongd Ls
gt the far side of the same fleld I, nibﬁin the surround-
ing rall, rb&uf 1L stones, £ of ther! lerge & Irregulcrly
shaped, “orm en slmost perfect circle; this cirele, nbout-
in ;1a:nf,r is bullt on 2 mound & SU:JaunﬂEﬂ
5. .
The third L*r¢1ﬁ is In the [ield adjolning the second,
ot the rere, &, omidst thorn bushes & briara, slx stones
rerein on the marsdn GF the clirole whlch is about 40! in
dismoter, The other 1z In the gentre of the fleld
hehind the Mirat circle ' ED;EE?S‘FD have been ymech largen



